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WorkSource Portland Metro Centers 

 

Questions and Answers 

This information may be edited for clarity 
 

May 22, 2018 

 
Q1 The RFP states that Leverage Documentation is to be submitted electronically in PDF format.  Can we send a zipped 

file of all the PDFs, or should we send separate emails with the attachments so the file size won’t prevent the email 
from being delivered?   

A1 You may submit a zipped file or send multiple emails with the attachments.  Please be sure to clearly label 
each email in the subject line. 

 
Q2 What is the difference between “ITA Administered” and “ITA Supported”? 
A2 “ITA Administered” are the ITAs for which the Center is paying a portion of costs.  “ITA Supported” are the 

number of ITAs that 1.0 FTE can support in a year.   
 
Q3 Can on-site partners (WIOA mandated and non-WIOA mandated) who are a part of the Resource Sharing Agreements 

with Worksystems be included in the list of leverage – for example, Experience Works Interns, Goodwill staff who offer 
workshops – or are these resources considered “controlled” by Worksystems? 

A3 Services provided in centers by WIOA required partners that are part of the local area MOU and Infrastructure 
Funding Agreement will not be considered as response to the RFP leverage question, since those partners are 
pre-determined and meet and make service decisions at a local area level.   

 
If a respondent secures leverage commitments from other non-WIOA mandated partners for services that 
benefit center participants, that leverage may be included for purposes of the RFP leverage question. 

 
Q4 Can Economic Opportunity Programs be leveraged if they are embedded into the WorkSource center, or is that 

considered “controlled” by Worksystems? 
A4 No, respondents cannot consider the EOP programs leverage for purposes of this RFP.  Those providers are 

separately procured and contracted by Worksystems. 
 
Q5 What does “number of new customers” mean for the Career Specialist function?  If a Career Coach has a certain 

number of clients on their caseload, wouldn’t the number of new customers be the same? 
A5 “Number of new customers” is the number of customers 1.0 FTE Career Specialist can support in a year.  The 

number is not the same as their caseload; for example, they could support 130 new customers in a year, but 
maintain an active caseload of 60 customers. 

 

 

May 16, 2018 

 
Q1 On the Center Staff Functions document, does the “number of partner agencies supported” mean the number of 

agencies assigned to a specific WorkSource Liaison, or does it mean the actual number of agencies the WorkSource 
Liaison serves, regardless of whether or not the agency is assigned by Worksystems to that Liaison?   

A1 This refers to the number of partner agencies a Liaison can effectively support.  Worksystems assigns 
Liaisons to APN organizations, however, we want to know how many organizations a single liaison can 
support without reducing the quality of the support. 

 
Q2 What should be included in “Annual Workshop Delivery Hours” on the Center Staff Functions document?  Should all 

information sessions be included, even those under specific grants (HCNW, Reboot) and regional contracts, or only 
mandated workshops as described in the Operational Standards? 

A2 Please include the capacity of 1.0 FTE Career Specialist staff to deliver workshops.  This can be the core 
workshops outlined in the Operational Standards and/or any other workshop or info sessions delivered at the 
center.  Do not include those specific to grants or regional contracts.  See also the response to the May 15, 
2018, Q4.   

 
Q3 We would like to include our center’s WIOA performance in our proposal.  In the I-Trac reports section, there are two 

reports, one labelled “WIA Performance” and one labelled “WIOA performance”.  Does the I-Trac WIOA Performance 
report contain the data listed on page 21 of the WorkSource Oregon Operational Standards v2.0? 
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A3 The I-Trac WIOA Performance Report tracks performance for the measures outlined in the WIOA law, which are 
included in but not the only performance outlined in the WSO Standards.  For the purposes of the RFP, 
showing WIOA performance measure outcomes is acceptable. 

 
Q4 Section C: Budget Requirement and Leverage states that no budget workbook submission is required, but at the top of 

page 18 in the RFP, it states “please send an electronic copy of the proposal and administrative capacity documents (in 
pdf) and the budget workbook (in Excel) to RFP@worksystems.org. Is the budget workbook optional, and if so, will a 
proposal with a budget attached be stronger than one without? 

A4 This reference is an error in the solicitation document.  No budget workbook is provided in the Resource 
Documents and a budget is not required as part of the submission.  A budget workbook submitted as part of a 
proposal will not be reviewed during the evaluation process, and so will not increase the strength of a 
proposal. 

 

 

May 15, 2018 

 
Q1 Can leverage documentation include grant proposals, even if an executed contract is not yet in place?   
A1 Yes, this could include grant awards which demonstrate a resource and program plan that will be available 

during the period noted. 
 
Q2 Can leverage documentation include executed contracts, with or without a 20-page workplan? 
A2 Yes, this could include executed contracts that demonstrate an available resource and scope of work in 

alignment with the proposed leverage.  We do not need to see a full workplan if it is described clearly in the 
contract.  If the 20-page workplan is part of the contract, demonstrating the leverage funds a briefly describing 
the services being leveraged is acceptable, with the supporting workplan available for viewing if necessary. 

 
Q3 Can leverage documentation include an email exchange only, confirming commitment but without a contract? 
A3 Yes, but the evaluation committee may ask for further backup documentation, depending on the type and 

amount of leverage being proposed. 
 
Q4 What is the difference between “Annual Workshop Delivery Hours” and “Number of Workshops”, on the Center Staff 

Functions document?  
A4 There is not much difference.  For “Annual Workshop Delivery Hours”, enter the amount of time a Career 

Specialist can be expected to prepare for and deliver workshops.  For “Number of Workshops” listed in the 
Customer Outreach section, enter the number of workshops a staff person in this function would deliver 
during a year.  It is expected that they would be conducting program information sessions at WorkSource and 
other partner organizations. 

 

May 8, 2018 

 
Q1 In order to “Describe specific quantifiable outcomes of past workforce development programs as measured by WIOA 

and/or other similar training and employment performance measures”, can we use a chart with 10-point font to illustrate 
outcomes?   

A1 Yes. 
 
Q2 The RFP says “Describe specific quantifiable outcomes of past workforce development programs as measured by 

WIOA and/or other similar training and employment performance measures”.  What does “other similar training and 
employment measures mean?  Can non-WIOA programs and outcomes be submitted? 

A2 “Other similar …” means non-WIOA performance measures related to workforce development programs.  If a 
respondent has operated any type of workforce development program, they should describe their outcomes.   

 
Q3 Is the resume of the manager or director of the fiscal department a required document, and will it count toward the 

page limit for the Administrative Capacity Response? 
A3 Yes, the resume is required.  It does not count toward the Administrative Capacity narrative page limit. 
 
Q4 The Center Staff Functions document asks for salary and fringe by function.  Out staff salaries vary.  How should we 

list the salary and fringe by function, if the range varies greatly among staff?  
A4 You may submit an average or a range. 
 
Q5 The Center Staff Functions document asks for position costs per 1.0 FTE. How can this document demonstrate the 

actual staffing needs for the services we propose, when there’s no way to “total” the FTEs? 

mailto:RFP@worksystems.org
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A5 The document is not meant to demonstrate the actual staffing needs.  We will negotiate staffing levels with the 
successful respondents based on final PY18 WIOA allocations, with consideration given to agreed-upon FTE 
costs and service capacity. 

 

May 3, 2018 

 
Q1 Are the Work Experience Agreements tied to the delivery on the On the Job Training (OJT) placements, or are they 

separate? 
A1 No; a separate agreement is used for Work Experience and On the Job Training. 
 
Q2 Are the Career Specialist work experience placements expected to replace or add value to existing system-wide work 

experience programs? 
A2 They are not expected to replace existing system-wide work experience programs.  Our expectation is that 

Career Specialist staff at all WSPM Centers should understand what a Work Experience is and have the ability 
and knowledge to put an agreement in place, so in that regard it would add value to the system. 

 
Q3 Are Career Coaches, described on page 10 of the RFP as “…WorkSource-embedded Case Managers,” tied to WSPM-

embedded programs, such as EOP, Reboot, HCNW, etc.? 
A3 Yes. 
 
Q4 The May 1, 2018 Q2 appears to contradict the Leverage section on page 16 of the RFP.  Please confirm that the 

documents from our partners to validate leverage will not be counted against response page limitations? 
A4 Please see the corrected response to May 1, 2018 Q2, below. 
 
Q5 Our current indirect cost rate has both WIOA-defined Administrative and Non-Administrative components.  

Administrative costs are always kept below the cap of 10% of total costs.  In keeping with cost reimbursement rules, 
our final costs billed to an award have always been the lower of actual costs or approved Indirect Cost Rate. 

A5 The 10% Administrative cap does not follow to program contracts, so this type of separation of costs is not 
required.  All funds contracted under this RFP are considered Program costs. 

 
Q6 If an agency doesn’t have a current valid Federal Indirect Cost Rate (FICR), will Worksystems negotiate an Indirect 

Cost Rate with us, or should we use Cost Allocation methodologies for budgeting and allocating pooled costs without 
regard to a specific rate? 

A6 If Worksystems previously paid the subrecipient agency under a FICR, Worksystems will continue in 
accordance with that practice.  The subrecipient agency must continue to calculate its indirect cost rate using 
the methodology employed in its prior negotiated indirect rate from its cognizant funding agency.  The 
subrecipient agency must then submit its indirect cost rate proposal, including supporting calculations, to 
Worksystems based on audited financial statements at the start of each program year.  In compliance with the 
uniform guidance, Worksystems will review the indirect cost rate proposal and supporting calculations and 
approve or negotiate for purposes of our contracts for the upcoming year.    

 
Q7 For the Center Staff Functions Document Management number of staff field, should we count only staff funded by this 

grant, or include staff who work on specialized grants such as Reboot and HCNW? 
A7 All WSPM service delivery staff who are supervised by the management should be counted, including those 

who work on specialized grants. 
 
Q8 On the Center Staff Functions Document, what should be counted under “Annual Hours of APN Training delivery?  

Does it refer only to hours of one-on-one coaching, or does it include monthly trainings organized by Ernesta or Career 
Mapping workshop assistance? 

A8 Respondents should count any time spent preparing for and delivering training to APN organizations, but 
should NOT include time spent providing one-on-one technical assistance.  This information is currently 
provided monthly to multiple APN organizations. 

 
 

May 1, 2018 

 
Q1 With regard to APN-related job functions, will 1B providers at WorkSource Centers be expected to have a 1.0 FTE APN 

WorkSource Liaison position to maintain 5-day coverage for APN Liaison support?  If so, should the Center Staff 
Functions document have an “automatic” 1.0 FTE in the APN Liaison Support column? 

A1 Based on available resources, the intent is to require 1B providers to have a 1.0 FTE APN WorkSource Liaison 
position to maintain 5-day coverage for support to the APN member agencies.  The Center Staff Functions 
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document should show the cost for the FTE; based on that information and available budget, we will negotiate 
the number and percentage of FTE for each function. 

 
 CORRECTION: 
Q2 Should partner letters be added to a submission, and what is the minimum or maximum number of letters?  Could 

supplemental documents be attached to the submission? 
A2 Any documents submitted that are not listed as required in the solicitation will be counted against the page 

limit.  Partner letters are not required unless respondent is providing Leverage documentation, in which case 
(as noted in the solicitation) the letters/documentation would not be counted toward the page limit. 

 
Q3 Can footnotes and references for employment, wage, and population data be included on a separate sheet and not 

counted against the 10-page limit? 
A3 Guidelines for proposal submission can be found in pages 14 and 19 of the RFP solicitation.  Except for 

documents required to be submitted, any additional documents will be counted in the page limitation.  
Additional pages over the limit will not be considered by the evaluation committee. 

 
 

April 27, 2018 

 
Q1 What is the difference between Part IX, Section A, Item C and Part IX, Section B, Item A? These are similar, 

overlapping, and could be open to interpretation.   
Part IX, Section A, Item C – “Discuss your knowledge and understanding of the workforce needs of the 
region’s job seekers and employers” 
Part IX, Section B, Item A – “Describe your understanding of the service needs of the target population…” 

A1 The first item is to assess a respondent’s understanding of the common workforce needs of the region’s job 
seekers and employers.  The second item seeks to assess a respondent’s understanding of the service needs 
of target populations as identified in Part V. 

 
Q2 Are current WIOA 1B providers to maintain separate positions for the Career Specialists, Career Coaches, and 

Customer Outreach Staff, or are these functions expected to be integrated into single Workforce Development 
Specialist position that serves all of the described functions? 

A2 We are open to considering a variety of service delivery models. 
 
Q3 How should the Center Staff Function document be completed?  Can you provide a sample?  
A3 A sample has been posted to the Resources Documents section of the website.  Please note that in completing 

this sample, a change was made to the form so respondents should use the posted document with the “REV 
2018-04-27” notation in the name. 

 
Q4 On the Center Staff Functions document, please define what the “Number of Staff” column should include; is it the 

number of staff supervised, or the number of staff supported? 
A4 Number of staff refers to the number of staff a manager can effectively supervise and the number of staff a 

support staff person can support. 
 
Q5 On the Center Staff Functions document, please define caseload capacity. 
A5 Caseload capacity is the number of active customers a career coach can work with at any given time. 
 
Q6 On the Center Staff Functions document, please define what “number of new customers connected to grants and 

programs” means. 
A6 The “number of new customers connected to grants and programs” is how many customers are enrolled in a 

grant or training program. 
 
Q7 The current RFP for WSPM Centers does not address regional grants currently held by current center service providers 

(community colleges deliver Foundational Skills, ELL for example).  How should respondents address the specific 
programs delivered region-wide by one provider? 

A7 Part IX, Sections A & B provides opportunities to describe a respondent’s experience delivering services to 
target populations and the respondent’s understanding of those customers’ needs.  It is anticipated that the 
successful respondents will all qualify to deliver region-wide services and those projects will be contracted as 
appropriate within the new contractor structure. 

 
Q8 Will WIOA 1B providers be mandated to use Rosetta Stone?  Will they be mandated to use Rosetta Stone advantage 

for Career Boost customers? 
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A8 Use of Rosetta Stone will not be mandated.  At this time, it is unknown if Rosetta Stone advantage will be made 
available to Career Boost customers in PY18.  If it is made available in PY18, it will be administered by a WIOA 
1B provider. 

 
Q9 Will Worksystems consider separate applications from the same organization for different locations, or should the 

applications be combined into one proposal? 
A9 Applicants may choose to submit a single application for multiple WSPM locations, or may submit a separate 

application for each location; either submission type is acceptable. 
 
 
 
 


